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ARLINTON

Masdisnos s a town in cast central West Virginia, Im'.;llnl in
Pocahontas County. 1t is the county seat of l‘mjnhunl;w County,
and B known 20 2 bunting resort. Marlinton, utu.nln.i southeast
of Wetnter Seximgy and ecant of Richwood, had, in 1937, a
genesa! nw;n-.&:r.rn of 1.585 In 1040, it was rr;mru:dltu ha‘wc a

sonal pemeral population of 1,644 and in 1950, lht': United States
Creses pave the town a general population of 1,654. .

The AFTE for 1927 reported that there were 11 Jews living
s Maslinton in 1927, and in 1037 there were ten Jews or less
resciing in the town.

Several years after 1922, Harry Barbakow, now (1959) living
i Prisceson. W. Va. and his brother-in-law, Herman Kelmen-
son. mowed from Thomas, W. Va., to Marlinton, where they
opened wp a dry goods and clothing store in partnership. Later,
Harry Barbakow sold out his share in the store to Herman
Kelmesson, who remained in Marlinton; while Harry Barbakow
seatied in Princeton, W. Va,, entering the dry goods and clothing
business. In 1950, he was still resident in Princeton, engaged
in the same business, together with his son, Yankee [Jacob]
Barbakow.

in addition to the above information, excerpted in part from
letters written to me by Harry Barbakow (from 1956 to 1959),
who was a very staunch member of my old Bluefield-Princeton
Congregation Ahavath Sholom (1947-1950), I was most for-
tunate in receiving four additional letters dealing with the
carlier and present Jewish residents of Marlinton, from which
most of the following data have been excerpted. These letters
were from:

Suvsmers H. Suarp, an attorney (a non-Jew) in Marlinton; the
letter is dated July 26, 1956.

Dowarn [Dox] C. TaviLor, minister of the Emmanuel Methodist
Church, of Huntington, and a former resident in, and native
of, Marlinton, who was reared and lived for a number of
years in Marlinton. The Reverend Don C. Taylor and I
met several times in Buckhannon, W. Va., as well as in
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Huntington, on the occasion of J. C. 8. assignments 1o me
and at Religious Elnphasis Week programs and summer
camp programs of the Methodist Church of West Virginia
in which I participated (1950~1956). His letter is dated
July 18, 1956.

Mrs. Paur R. Overnort, of Buckeye, W. Va., formerly of
Marlinton, and the daughter of Paul Golden. Her letter is
dated August 8, 1956.

AporrH E. (Epwarp) Coorer, a Marlinton attorney. His letter
is dated August 3, 1956.

The last threce mentioned letters contain so many valuable
data about Jews of Marlinton, and provide such fine human-
interest stories, that they are herewith cited virtually in toto.

[From the Reverend Donald C. Taylor]

“Huntington, West Virginia.
“July 18, 1956.

- - . . Regarding the Jewish families of Marlinton, . . . there is now
only one family residing there that is strictly Jewish. That is the
Cooper family. The head of the family, Adolph E. Cooper, is an
attorney in Marlinton. He is quite active in the Republican Party on
a county basis. I believe that he is the city attorney. He was raised,
I believe, at Cass, West Virginia. Mrs. Cooper is a very devout per-
son. ... I believe that her family is in Baltimore, and that she has
some connection with a synagogue there. The Coopers have two chil-
dren: Doris Ella Cooper, who is now in college; and Daniel Cooper,
who is a senior at Marlinton High School.

Mrs. Paul Overholt lives in [near] Marlinton. [She is the daughter
of the late Paul Golden.] She was raised as a Jewess. At the present
time she attends the Episcopalian Church. I am not sure that she has
been confirmed as a member. Her husband is a member of the Meth-
odist Church in Marlinton. [The maiden name of Mrs. Paul Overholt
was Mary Frances Golden; she was nicknamed and is commonly
called “Fannie.”] One daughter in the family [of Paul and “Fannie”
Overholt] is a Unitarian. . . . =

cheralycanagothmwmthmotherjcwi:hfamﬂiﬂinﬂﬂﬂnf-_
ton. I knew them slightly. The Kleins (originally residents of Baltimore)
were merchants there [in Marlinton] in 1932. A family named Schuchat
owned a store there, and sold out to the Kleins. [The Schuchat family
of Marlinton was related to the family of Louis Schuchat, of Lewisburg,
and to that, also, of Mrs. Sara Schwartz Schuchat.] I believe that the
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Sehuchsn beft Marlinton during the summer ‘:f II{}H. [ am not s;|rc
) Sere they west. The only name of any of the F\Irlm that 1 remem N'r‘r
'.-t’ut of Anita Ricin. She graduated from high school with ll‘lt‘ [in
:(,f{mmf\' in 1o, 1 am not sure when the er'im left Marlinton.
| am inchimed o believe that they returned to B.-nlnmu'rc. -
The thisd family which 1 remember was named l\.chm:nson. I'he
mame of the head of the family was written H. [Herman] l'\cln:icnsfm.
I knew a son Jof Herman Kelmenson) quite well, from being in high
shool with him. He was named Harry hclmt:lu‘,un. l understand that
Harry Kelmemson is now a prominent surgeon in Baltimore, Maryland.
There was ooe dauchter in the Kelmenson family; she was ol(!cp than
Harry, but 1 do not remember her name. . I do nol.rcmcmhc:r
when the Kelmensons moved away from Marlinton. I believe that it

was in the middle 1930"s — about 1935 or 1936.

[From Mrs. Paul R. (Mary Frances Golden] Overholt, of Buckeye,
W. Va., under date of August 8, 1956]

“ “Balla Machree’
“R.F.D.1,
“Buckeye, W. Va.

... My mother, Minna Milner, came from Lithuania, near
Propst. Her father was a miller. The village in which she lived was
on 2 river much like the Greenbrier. She was very pious, but failed
o instruct me in the Jewish precepts. This was the case in [with]
many of the carlier Jewish settlers who had to work so hard that they
neglected this step, although [the proverb or saying] “Born a Jew,
always a Jew” seems to be bred in the bone. The early merchants
here had to board their clerks [provide them with room and meals),
%o that made extra work.

Besides running a general merchandise store, my father [Paul
Golden] and H. [Herman] Kelmenson bought wool and ginseng.

I hope that you may be able to garner a few facts of interest from
my [the following] ramblings. I had hoped to rewrite the enclosed

rambling account and have it typed. However, after six weeks of
guests, the work in my garden makes this impossible.

““Fanxie’ Overnort (Mary Frances Golden
Overholt).”

Judge [Summers H] Sharp asked me to answer your letter, as he
felt that I knew more about my father [Paul Golden). Papa was a very
colorful figure, He was about 514 feet tall, with merry blue eyes and
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light brown hair. H; always had a i 1

they came to his store; so ’:mny of ::‘n;‘:l :Ilf:al:— J:I‘f :‘eh:l;!b,:,u:;‘m
He loved to eat, and always planned to spend the night when he ;m
tsriavclmghwhcrcb;hcy had a good cook. He always stopped at Jud;:

1arp’s home [before he i i
goodpfricnds. [before he settled in Marlinton], and they were always

His home [native country and village] w i
[Pripet] Marshes in what is :’;w Poland Eu]l [w:z] mat};&m
at that time. His father, who was a bookkeeper for a well-to-do relative
In a nearby city (Riga?), was killed at the beginning of a pogrom when
he rushed back to [into] the store to get the books, although his relative
had begged him not to. He [my father, Paul Golden] borrowed the
money from some relative to come to America, and then sent mo
ls)ack ;or the various members of his family to come [to the United

tates). =

He was always interested in education and the welfare of this
community [Marlinton, W. Va). At his death, in 1944, we sent his
library of many of the classics to a synagogue in Baltimore,

Paul Golden [my father] was born in Russia, near the Phriphet
[Pripet] Marshes, and came to America between 1885 and 1888,
He began in business as a peddler in West Virginia. He bought his
merchandise from the Baltimore Bargain House, and after coming to
Pocahontas County [in West Virginia] [he] had it shipped to Millton
Springs, Va., where it was brought over the mountains to the store
which he [later] had in Edray [West Virginia). Previously to this he
had carried his merchandise in a huge sack on his back. He must have
been very strong, as the cou ntry people marveled at what he could get
in this sack. Mrs. Elmer Poague [Pogue] said that they could always
depend on what he said about his merchandise. If he said it was good,
it was fine, and if he said it was Jjust “fair,” it was that. He had a gray
horse and wagon when he became more prosperous. After he came to
Edray, a village a few miles from Marlinton, he let a cousin, “Red”
Golden, do the peddling. (The horse and buggy were lost in an
accident.) This cousin, an E. Golden, was a smaller man with red
hair and a long, red beard. The Elmer Pogues, in whose yard his little
store stood, and with whom he boarded, tell of the terrible quarrel
he had with “Red.” It seems that one Passover the matzoh did not
come from Baltimore, so he had their cook [the Elmer Pogues’ cook]
make it of flour, salt, and water. The cousin, a very religious man and
in poor health, ate it, but decided it wasn't right a few days later,
and was most indignant.

He [Paul Golden] moved to Marlinton about 1894 or 1895. Then he
married my mother in Baltimore. This store was near the old, wooden,
covered bridge built over the Greenbrier River during the Civil War.
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aree building, where he
Abarept : fang Y o scrom the bridge to a larg Mt s

} e wntil 1910 My mother's m“'-l'lr\n, Sumon Klein
Eavry? h TR 3 }

Mawrice Klein (now owner of a big general mer-
{ devrmmyd Aot aarn : . e ] g
so v father's in Forest Hill, Md.), workec

"l”‘jw .::-: ::,:- Marlinton]). His sister, Ida Golden Fuman, her
:;,;u,:.,:.-m e ¢ "I;l‘;.--::-. ran A ProsSperous store ‘fur‘ hlim in Falling
ﬁ‘.r‘rnfm ;'u- Resick, in Geeenbrier County [West .\'nr_\_-una]. for several
1-1:.\." Her bnband, John [Fuman], was very anxious to go to ."lllurgcr
place, s [be] moved to Indiana and thcn'(u (.-Inr;i,s'z.c) ;fnltl Baltimore,
bt el mever had any more money than in West V |rg:m;l.
- Papa belped my mother's sister Mary [Mary _Mllncr], and her
baband, Abe Harrison, cstablish a store in Marlinton ;ﬂfﬂul 1§03,
Abe [Harrson] was an excellent businessman, and eEold' his store to
Lowis Kicin. He [Abe Harrison] went to Fairmont, W. Va., whct:c h_c
made by fortune in a huge store dedicated to the workingman. This
more was leased to some men by the name of Golden Brothers [p.rc-
samably sot refated to Paul Golden] when he retired to Atlantic City
IN. J]. He [Abe Harrison] operated a store in Cumberland, Md,"
for a fow years, hoping to get his three sons established thcr?, but his
Bealeh was poor there, so he went back to Atlantic City. He died 'thcrc
#t the age of 79 in 1954. | wrote to his oldest son, Bernard [Harrison],
of g8o1 Venwnor Ave. [Atlantic City, N. ], for information, but have
mot received it

My father always was fascinated by the lumber business, so when he
sold bis store out, he indulged in this and lost much of his hard-carned
cash. However, the land on which he cut the most lumber was valuable
farmland, and helped him 1o recuperate his fortune a little. At the
age of 75 be started on the road again, in a Ford [automobile] this
time, as 2 jobber for work clothes and gloves. He traveled all over
southern West Virginia and enjoyed this work very much. It gave him
2n outlet for his urge to wander as in his younger days, and gave him a
chance to earn.

He gave me seven yearsin a boarding school and college. My mother
left money for my elder daughter to graduate from Columbia [Univer-
sity], and the younger from Cornell, so his love for learning was not lost.

He and “n;y mother are buried in the Southern Cemetery in

He announced his intentions to become naturalized in Baltimore in

_legi.,g;nd became a citizen in Pocahontas County [West Virginia)
in1 .

““Fawwe’ Overnorr (Mary Frances Golden Overholt).”
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[Letter from A. E. (Adolph Edward Cooper, of Marli
August 3, 1956) ) g

“A. E. [Adolph Edward] Cooper,
“Attorney at Law,

“Marlinton, W. Va.
“August 3, 1956,

This is in reply to your letter requesting information about
family, and other former Jewish families who lived here in the [Poca-
hontas] county, and especially at Marlinton.

My father was Jacob Cooper. My mother was Maggie Gordon
Cooper. They came to Cass, West Virginia, in this county, around
1905. Dad was a merchant, operating the Cooper’s Department Store
at Cass. We were the only Jewish family in Cass. My father was a
most respected citizen. He was a member of the Town Council at Cass. !
He was a member of the Masonic Order at Cass, [the Lodge in Cass)
being Riverside Lodge No. 124. When Dad came to Cass there were
three children, namely, Veeda, Leon, and Theodore [Cooper]. Then 1
was born on June 7th, 1906. Lewis [Cooper, my brother] was born on
July 20th, 19o7. All [the] children graduated at [from] Marlinton !
High School. Marlinton is 25 miles from Cass by rail. The children
had to board away from home while going to school. Dad moved his
store from Cass to Durbin, West Virginia, in 1930, and continued in
business for a couple of years and left this county in 1932, returning to
Washington, D. C. He came from Washington to West Virginia in
1905. Dad died in 1943 in Washington, D. C., on July 4th, and is
buried in Adas Israel Cemetery. He was aged 69. Mother died August
25th, 1947, and is also buried in the same cemetery. Her maiden name
was Gordon, and her father was a rabbi, as I recall, in Russia. Both
My parents originally came from Russia, and [my] father became a
naturalized citizen prior to his coming to West Virginia. My mother
was a very well-read person, and [was] well liked by all who came in
contact with her.

My sister, VEepa [Coorer], died in 1928, and is buried in the same
cemetery in Washington. She was a talented pianist, and was most
popular. She was the oldest of the children [of Jacob and Maggie
Gordon Cooper]. -

Leon [Coorer] is the oldest boy, and is living in Washington, D. C.
He is connected with the Metropolitan Life Insurance Company, He
is married, and has one child, named Barbara. He was a member of
the Masonic Lodge at Cass, .

THEODORE COOPER is a doctor, having his office in Baltimore,
He graduated [from] West Virginia University [in Morgantow
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mran i he Masonic Lodge at
Me wan & meanber of the
B . Cons L and has two children: Vieki, a

Yeaderr Liwgwe W BTN
i § Bdward Vichi b married, and lives in Baltimore
Amughvre  arv ol ;

- it & Dematiied hoene at Pikesville, Md. He is next to Leon
hresderr tmos! : sriilisd § g : N
" ngv Thradory Uovyes @ adeo a M Beta h.\j';u from West \ Irginia

1 rzvermesr ) .
{ Anmss Fosoann Coorsx] am the next boy, born on June 3,
L

‘™ ' saduated [from] West Virginia Law School

gt i .-‘: ‘:,, \1‘; aI f,&f:;« L] gu.i]u.aml on June 8th [192¢),
- -‘:-ﬂ-‘-w:j H.—;.-rx.-_ oo July 8th [192g), in Marlinton, W. Va, 1
::.‘.Lm:;? of Phi S;k:v.-a Delta fraternity, a national one. ... |
,u,,;,- been Oty Atsoency in Marlinton since 1941, 5md perhaps a year
ot belorr that. While at West Virginia University [ was a member
of the vassey wresthing team in the 118-pound class, for the five years
there, 2 2 member of the West Virginia Club for athletes, called
e Varmey Chuts, | belicve. | am a member of the Masonic Order at
Can | 2= 3 sesmber of the Marlinton Rotary Club, and Past President
on two mparate cccasons. | became a member one month after the
(leb was oegasized in 1937. | was a president of the Pocahontas
Cirsany Boasd of Trade for one year. ... I am a Republican, and ran
for the office of Prosecuting Attorney of Pocahontas County, West
Vipsia, for theee times. This was in 1932, 1936, and 1940. [It way)
2 Bad time for 3 Republican to run. I am at present Chairman of the
Repatlican Executive Commitiee of Pocahontas County, having been
eexted 2 member at the primary, and chosen Chairman by the Com-
siser. | was elected 2 Member from Edray District of this county.

I 2= masried, and the father of two children. I was married on
Decemsber 24, 1933, in New York. My wife was formerly Diana
Krosick. She was born in New York, but her folks were living at
Usicatown, Pa, when I was attending school at Morgantown at the
Usivensity of West Virginia. We met at the fraternity on the campus at
West Virginia University. 4

Doass Evia Cooren is my elder [child). She is a graduate of Marlin-
toa High School in 1954. She is now [1956] a junior at the University
of Maryland. She is 2 member of Alpha Epsilon Phi Sorority at the
Usiversity of Maryland. She made the Dean’s List this past school
year. She was born (in Marlinton) on October 1, 1936.

Daxme Pavt. Cooren is my son. He was born on April 23, 1940. He
¥ & sophomore in Marlinton High School, and a member of the basc-
::;nd footh::l m Heis the only Jewish student in the [Marlinton)
. e [the Adolph B. Cooper family) are the only Jewish family living
in Pocahontas ('ounly.at this time [1956).

Now some information as 1o other Jewish families:

)

MARLINTON 1011

Pavr Goroex, Paul Golden came to Marlinton in 4
merchant, and died here in 1944 at the age of 86, Hlis vlv?f?:w.?;:,:;
Milner Golden, who dicd in 1948, at the age of 80 years.

Ane Harmrmon. Abe Harrison was in business in Marlinton, about
the year 1905. He went from Marlinton to Fairmont, W. Va., som
time around 1905, and opened up the “Workingman’s Store.” Later
he leased this store of his 0 a firm known as Golden Brothers h;
Fairmont, while he himself moved to Atlantic City, N. J. Abe Harri
was the brother-in-law of Paul Golden. He sold his business in Marlin-
ton to Louis Klein, of Baltimore, Mr. [Abe] Harrison died in Atlantic

City in 1954, at the age of 79, and at the time he was in the real estate
business,

ScHuLMAN BROTHERS. The Schulman Brothers were here in business
during the period from 1910 to 1920. One of the brothers was Max
Schulman. One of them is still living. They went from Marlinton to
Poughkeepsie, N. Y.

Isaac Rosen. Isaac Rosen was here in business in the carly 1920's.
His wife was a relative of the Schulmans.

H. [erMAN] KELMENSON. H.[erman)] Kelmenson and his family were
in Marlinton for years. He was married, and had two children. Edith
Kelmenson, his daughter, was married, and died in Baltimore. A
son, Harry Kelmenson, is a doctor, located in Baltimore; he is married,
and has a family of his own. Mr. and Mrs. H.[erman] Kelmenson are
living in Baltimore, Md. Mr. [Herman] Kelmenson operated a store
in Marlinton for many yehrs,

SIMON SHUCHAT [SchucHAT].2 Simon Shuchat and his family lived
here at Marlinton for years. He operated a fine store here. His wife
was Sarah [Mrs. Sara Schwartz Schuchat; see below] She lives in
Baltimore. . . . They have some children living in Baltimore,

[S:f below, for the letter of Mrs. Sara Schwartz Schuchat on
Marlinton and the Simon Schuchat family.)

!.ou:s.Suucm'r [ScuuchaT]. Louis Schuchat was also in Marlinton,
:"," ':c s now, and has been for many years, located at Lewisburg,

}':;r: auntl [hl._.ouls §chucha:_ operated a store in Lewisburg for many
» until his retirement i i X
brﬁ:cr A Schuchat] rom business in the 1950%s. He was the
uis KLeiv. Louis Klein was succeeded [in business the
Shuchats [Schuchats], and then they in turn by J‘Ebe Klein. AlbebyKlein
“3s in business here for a few years. A fire destroyed the property.,

He had a daughter named Ani B :

: ta Klein, i
'lht')oarcmwinBajﬁmore,Ibd. e a son, Millard Klein.
e lev

‘o 1894 _ . e
e s, e 1oy % 1© Paul Golden's daughicr, Mrs. Paul R. Overholt;
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Sylvia, were in business in
ey now live in Baltimore,

Ar S AJ Sehedr and hin wilfe
st '\'g,. Qe Ross, of Baltimore. Both have
" 3

posd B e

M urdantar oo
Md Sedisa S .
s \f"“'-"" Fannie [Mary Frances Golden Over-
i s '3_- :1..“!‘-1" fog !'.r.lm es, no doubt] Overholt,
R -'R’ ‘H«:-;-"- lives near Marlinton, in this County
i ’::-‘-\ ] ‘\n:— ;J.:i:f.l-.a.:!-.:rr of Mr. and Mrs. Paul Golden.
;” e { o : \!r*.*;\'i--e and they have two children. . . .
e *I'“:c;; )-:a c*.;:' ;wn\:' in this County, near Marlinton,

o after a divorce proceeding
rernperTied w

Sex Fasnm UTRMNOR

t‘: -'-': )r--n a corpocation for that purpose. The curpnr.‘lt.iﬂn is
':;c{‘w Pocsbontas County Country Club, and I am president.
:f‘.a o ;-;'-: amother point of interest, in view of the fact that we are
Q.; cody Jows bere [the Adolph E. Cooper family]. ol

Laws Coorsx. | overlooked my youngest brother, Lewis (:00]}:(!'!'.
Fe was born fin Cass, W. Va.] on July 20, 1907. \ gradl'zau: of \'\:'cst
Viegisis University, he served in the United States Navy. Now marru;:d,
be & Bvioe in Washington, D. C., and has three sons. He was with

Heche's Department Store [in Washington, D. C] for a fc\s--ycar?,
a5 & mow with the Sun Radio Stores. He was in every State in this
coumtry, and has toured Europe.

Jacos Coosen. My father, Jacob Cooper, was a great man. He
befieved in education. Three of us boys were at West Virginia Univer-
sity 2t ooe time. Our mother and father gave us the best of everything
2t comsiderable sacrifice. We were the only Jewish family at Cass.

My full name is Adolph Edward Cooper.

“A. E. Cooper.”

Mesoir oF Mrs. SARA SCHWARTZ SCHUCHAT!
ox MarLiNTON, WEST VIRGINIA
AND oN Her LATe HusBanp
Smuoxn SciucHAT, oF MARLINTON, WEST VIRGINIA?

Meuoix oF Mrs. SARA (S1MON) SCHUCHAT
MarvLintoN, WesT VIRGINIA

1 &m sorry not to have sent you the below background before now,
but it is the kind of thing one wants to sct down all at once, and a
sufficient stretch of time has been lacking.

* (o 3413 Glen Avenue, Baltimore 15, Maryland).

¥ Written F. y 19 uary
ﬂ.'mhmhmdmhmmel.S‘ A
) Iunedling The bracketed
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SmmoN Scnucnat was born in Kovna [Kovnol], Lithuania, about
1878, and came to Baltimore with his parents and four sisters and
brothers in 1884. Two more children were born in Baltimore. He
owned a cigar factory in Baltimore until after we were married, on
February 28, 1915, at Baltimore. In 1916 we moved to Marlinton, at
which time Simon Schuchat bought Klein's Department Store in
Marlinton from my uncle, Louis Klein. We moved back 1o Baltimore,
from Marlinton, in 1930. On his side of the family, only my husband,
and his brother Louis Schuchat, had any connection with West
Virginia. [Louis Schuchat, later of Lewisburg, W. Va., is the father-
in-law of Rabbi Ely E. Pilchik, of Newark, N. J., Rabbi Pilchik having
married Louis Schuchat’s daughter Ruth] Louis Schuchat married
Mary Aaron, of Blueficld [Mary Aaron would be an aunt of Mrs.
Sarah Aaron Schlossberg (Mrs. Abraham N. Schlossberg), of Blue-
field], and Mrs. [Louis] Schuchat should be able to supply you with a
wealth of information about Lewisburg and Bluefield. Their address
is just Lewisburg, W. Va., but they spend the winter at Coral Gables,
Florida.

I was born SARA ScuwArTZ, one of seven children, in Boydton,
Virginia. Although my parents, Jacos ScuwArTz and Minna Kiems
ScuwARrTZ, came to Baltimore and returned there before we children
were all grown, they lived in the interval in several towns on the
Eastern Shore of Maryland, also in Boydton, Va., where my sister
Bessie and I were both born, and also briefly in North Carolina. They
owned stores in these places. My parents spent their later years in
Baltimore, and died there. For a short period of time, Jacob and Minna
Klein Schwartz lived also in Grafton, W. Va. We lived in Grafton,
[West Virginia,] for a time when I was very young.

We moved to Baltimore, where I started school. My brother AAroN
[Scuwartz] attended D & E [Davis and Elkins College, in Elkins,
W. Val], and played football there (against Navy!). At the time he
lived with my Uncle Ase KLEIN (my mother’s brother), who had a
store in Elkins. Uncle Abe Klein, a brother of Louis Krein, had moved
to Elkins from Grafton, West Virginia. Eparane KLEIN, my mother's
oldest brother, was in Grafton, West Virginia, for sixty years or more,
and had a department store. He married and died there. His daughter,
Ray Klein, is a resident buyer in New York City; his daughter, Flora
Klein Freedman, lives in Youngstown, Ohio; and his son, Harry
Klein, is in Minneapolis.

My Uncle Ixe (I. CuarLEs KLEIN) lived for a long time in Weston,
W. Va., where he had a department store. His son died quite young.

}'hree of his daughters live in New York and one in Princeton, New

My mother, MinNA Krewy, was born in Travich [Tavrick], near
Tilsit [Russia], about the year 1856 or 1857, and my father, Jacos
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semewanty. wi borm in Newasdt Lithuania, which was then A part

of Rosia. she sbout thyh or 1857 Both towm were in Kovno
Gubierna. They came o the Unised States (n (888 [18787), after thr'llr
marvinge i» Noimadt A the twse of their armival thr\-_ were on their
honeymoos, and whes thre came o Raltimore on thewr hunr\-lmpn.
they were adwsat Twrmiy-Twe YOAN oid My Aunt Crria KeriN married
Avxs [Avexasmen] Lasasts of Belington, W. Va,, .-u?d they hfu.l two
grh and fve hov Lowis, Morris, lsaac, Jack, Ephraim, Goldie, and
Loss Lassews Loww Lazasus lives in Wheeling, Morris Lazarus
Shond there smail i death a few yearns ago [at Wheeling]. Jack Lazarus
s 8 demtie is Raltimore, and Ersmam Lazarvs, who taught high
school i Belingaon for many years, now lives in Baltimore, as do the
pwe g, e kemer Gotom and Lexa Lazarus, all of them now
marvied. Epbesim Lasarus, after leaving Belington, became an office
massper i Baltimore; e is still working in that position in Baltimore.
Lows Kaszas (20 get back to my mother’s brothers) lived in Weston
and thes came 0o Marfinton, and bought A. [Abraham] Harrison’s
sore, which became Kicin's Department Store. I lived with his family
fromn the time | was sixteen until I was twenty. They were there
[Losks Klein and his wife] cight years in all before my husband bought
the more, 2t which time they moved to Washington. My Uncle ABe
Kazss was at St 2 salesman for the United Rubber Company before
be sentded in Elking, W. Va. He went to Elkins when he was quite
young, opensed a more there and married and had three children.
Laser be was in the department store business in Clarksburg, W. Va,,
with the Nasbaum Company. His last store was in Fairmont, W. Va.

yOu can see, were early settlers in West Virginia.
Schuchat’s Deparument Store (my husband, Simon Schuchat,
pame when he bought the store) sold ready-to-wear
whole family. Our customers came from the area
miles around Marlinton. The roads were not as good as
. and a whole family, lumbermen or farmers, would
Maslinton for a day of shopping. We did a lot of advertising,
& monthly magazine, and while we were in Marlinton we
the size of the store. We lived in an cight-room apartment

Mr, [Simmt!’uS;}mhuchat contributed and raised
It t the whole of Pocahontas
- Virginia). Although there were only five Jewish families
Gmnty(pndwccalledthcm[mrmdahal!‘becamoncman

did not want 0 have any i
part of anything like that [of Judaism and
%ﬁnﬂ of being known as a Jew, and of contributing

K
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money for Jewish ca , we raised a t
the book This ThinguCﬁd Giving, 1 befieu:e ;‘he:l ::::)e,, l:(::;’:
had all of our Christian friends contributing and raising money. We
had a real fund drive, with meetings at our house. Mr. Schuchat was
one of the Directors of The Bank of Marlinton. When we came there,
the town hﬂad clcclri;:)ig‘d oslaly al] night, and Mr. Schuchat was instru-
mental in floating a issue] to buy a second d for
current. He was very active in the Ki\yvanis Club. m wﬁ
active Democrat — when there were very few Democrats of any kind
in that area. His political interests did not affect his close fri
with such good Republicans as Judge Summer [Summers H) Sharp
or his brother George Sharp (mentioned below).

When the Presbyterian and Methodist Sunday schools studied the
Old Testament, Mr. Schuchat was always asked to speak to the
children. He also spoke at morning chapel at the high schools. He used
to have long conversations in Hebrew [?] with the Reverend George
J. Cleveland, then the minister of the Episcopal Church, later canon
at the Washington [D. C.] Cathedral, and now in Richmond, Virginia.
We always attended the Thanksgiving [Day] service at one of the
churches [in Marlinton] and went to them on other occasions.

I was one of the charter members of the Women’s Club of Marlinton,
whose membership was strictly limited to 24 and was by invitation
only. (I was the only Jewish member — and usually the only Jewish
delegate at State Women’s Clubs’ Conventions.)

Before we moved to Marlinton, Mr. [Simon] Schuchat learned [in
Baltimore] to be a shochet, so that we could have kosher fowl in West
Virginia. We had a kosher home, and at Pesach ate only meat because
we could not get pesachdich [fit for Passover use] dairy products.
We always had seders, and the other Jewish families of Marlinton
were invited. On the high holy days, even though there were not
enough Jews for a Minyan, we held services at our home.

(I would have imagined, or surmised, on the basis of etymology and
“Jogic,” that the implication is rather clear that the family name of
her husband, Simon Schuchat, is derived from the Hebrew word shockef,
which means a ritual slaughterer of poultry and animals, and that the
spelling Schuchat represents a variant of that name or title. It is very
likely that, just as Simon Schuchat learned, in Baltimore, to be a
Shochet, some one of his ancestors, or several of them, possibly his
father and his grandfather in the “Old Country,” had learned to be,
and had been, Shochetim in Lithuania, many years before Simon
Schuchat’s and his parents’ emigration to the United States, and that
it was from this occupation that the family name of Schuch: .
slight dialectical accent, and with a slight variant spelling of the name,
was adopted, perhaps as far back as two or three generations, eve

before Simon Schuchat’s grandfather’s time.
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Moy sy surenier, o Compectare, 2 to the “origin®” of the name

Beemcient wme IEOTITT scoewdene o the following statement In this
sy mnde B M Sara 8 Schachat, in reply to my query, in her
gooond long and Scandied deewer, that of January 22, 19 va:)

A B e 1 o, thee Sobvachat famsily in Lithuania consisted of five
cantors (el [Thee Sve beothers were the grandfather and the
fowr prantencies of Semoa Schuchat] We have heard that one of
thesr casaeey et 8o Italy, where some of his descendants live in
Rome My bobands father [David Schuchat] (the son of one of the
Bor beothen), whe made bis living bere [in the United States] as a
caluinramaier, osene to Baltimore. My husband learned to be a Shochet

oy w0 thas we mmphe bave [kosher] meat in Marlinton. He studied

IShecional) (i this & the serm) beiefly in Baltimore after our marriage

(agrg-opetl, bat before we went to West Virginia (in 1916), and
oy emone® s that be could perform ritual slaughtering for his own
family. Hie &, however, kill chickens for the other [Jewish] families
fin Marfesacel] for hodvdays
My babuad, Sowos Scxucsiar, went to Cheder [the five-day-a-week
Heterw day school] in Baltimore. His parents were observant Jews,
and the combesation gave him his religious background. His father,
Dinsd Scheachar, was a founder of Beth Tefilah Congregation [in
Baltmore]. As far 25 | know, the name has always been spelled
Schchat in Eaglish, with the two ¢'s. As I wrote above, the name far
flong] preceded my husband's becoming a Shochet.

Owr dasgheer Bersy [Scauciar] was born on June 3, 1918, and our
first wom, Twwooos [Scucaat], on June 135, 1923. Both of them were
born in Baltimore, 2nd Theodor was the first male Schuchat in a long,
long time.

' [O-r-m] Mecsazs [Scuucnat] was born on December 15, 1924,
in Marlinton. The Mohd was brought from Baltimore, and all of our
Gennilid as well Jﬂ?‘,ﬁ friends were invited to what I believe was
first Brith [circumcision ceremony] ever held in Marlinton.

j.LO-snnq Davio Growor [Sciuciat] was born at Marlinton on

19, 1930, and the Mohel was brought from Charleston by Secre-

tary of Seate [of West Virginia) George W. Sharp, who came d
with him and insisted that Davi i R
David also be named George because he

weﬁdhﬂuﬁuonlorfolmmu(unﬁll ), and t
5 hen we
rh:;r:eudmndwﬂakimmWehadﬁ:ay’phnnedto
Wfbmlhehopwmrudyfmﬂcbmw&hooL
Whﬂc“n hllnlmwnwcwouldbuyl-!ebrewboohfromtlm
[Bloch) Publishing Company [of New York] when we went on
w“*:r;:m?ak,ndmi?h:cmmwwdmmw

Sunday School correct . The

10 Beth Tefiloh [Tefilah] l'lﬂbmvﬂclloollnm{imom,we m":é"jm

R
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that congregation. Mr. Schughat's father [David Schuchat] had been )
one of the early members, and Mr. [Simon] Schuchat was active as a
member of the Board of Beth Tefiloh Congregation until his death at

Baltimore in October, 1945. As long as our children attended Hebrew w
School, }F was an active member of the Board of it. L
| >

s

!

-

|

|

1

\

Bersy [Scnucnat] went to West Virginia University and graduated
in 1939. While there she was president of the Sigma Delta Tau sorority.
She received a master’s degree in social work at Tulane University,
in New Orleans, and in 1946 she married Jerry Schoenholtz, a business
agent for the ILGWU [International Ladies’ Garment Workers'
Union]. They live in New York, and she is currently Directress of
Social Services of the French Hospital.
[TreoDOR] ScHUCHAT, the eldest son of Simon and Sara S. Schuchat,
attended West Virginia University until he went into the Army
Signal Corps in 1942. He graduated from the New School for Social
Research in New York after the [Second World] War, and was an
information specialist with the Department of Health, Education and
Welfare until he became the executive director of the Social Legislation
Information Service, in Washington, D. C. On December 27, 1958,
Theodor Schuchat was married to Bertha Moscov, of Washing-
ton, D. C.
MicHAEL [ScrucHAT] began college at Carnegie Tech [the Carnegie
Institute of Technology], in Pittsburgh, and then joined the Naval
ROTC. He graduated from Yale University in the class of [19]45W,
and then served as an ensign on a destroyer in the Pacific. After
graduating from Georgetown Law School, he clerked for Judge
Charles Fahey, of the United States Court of Appeals in Washington.
He was recalled during the Korean War and served in the Caribbean
and in North Africa. He is a member of the law firm of Geiger, Harmel
and Schuchat. He married Mollie Geiger, of the District of Columbia,
in 1953, and has three children, Simon, Frank, and Betty Schuchat.
[Michael Schuchat’s older son, Simon Schuchat, would thus appear
to have been named after his grandfather, the original Simon Schuchat
who was the husband of Mrs. Sara Schwartz Schuchat.)
Davip [Davip GeEorGe ScuucHAT) attended West Virginia Uni\:er-
sity, George Washington University, and Johns Hopkins University.
He served in the Quartermaster Corps of the Army in Munich. He
owns a tea company in Baltimore, and is engaged in real estate in .
Washington and Baltimore. He lives with me at 3413 Glen Avenue
(please note the new address), Baltimore 15, Md. _ e
We all have close ties to Marlinton. We go back as often as we can, +{ia
and I still subscribe to the Pocahontas Times (a weekly), founded by the
births in my family. Marlinton was a very liberal place to live fora W
Jew, and people were accepted for what they were. . . . ¥ e N

f ol l;l' T
" .
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FE 1 havr a porn commgpaend o Ohctoder 00, 1950, by the late Dy
Jusnes Madinon Prace w0 wn, o oot Jeaving Marlinton. | shall send
vou & oopw. 1 sl & & vory poad

“Mae Sams [Somwants] Sosvostar (Mee Sivon Scnvenar),
“gg1 4 Ghom Avesor,

Badsimore 15, Md

"FRIENDS AND FLOWERS"

in Walle Mamer's snerey mameson halls,
Glad morcangy (weth the parting of regret),
Saft mumsc, amd softer footeep falb

Ip messores of gramd, starely munuer

Froende bommyg e oid davy and wavy,
W can et know or show 2 reason why,
Hopimg for them ® stay with us always,
And mewer, the forever, last good bye.

Thkuuﬁu-mimthemmrshowcrs,

H‘fcﬂmknpthcamthqhwldnotfadc,
Too soon the roses were 2 sombre shade

Yet memories of their fragrance still are ours.
S-hm‘k::umdthcc\ﬂgrcm,
The leaf thae keeps the verdure ever new
h-—er.aﬁmmhmn,too,
Mmﬁgm-mnnlhcylun.

Ocacher 30, 1930 J.[ames] M.[AD1sON] Price
Banguer of farewell in honor of Mr. and Mrs. Simon Schuchat.

MARMET

Nt.-u s 2 town in Kanawha County, in west central West
Virginia, located on the Kanawha River, cight miles south

in 1958-1959, and, apparently,

ao]uﬂ:fnﬂluwmmmidedinthetown.Thiswas:
without doubt, because of jis proximity to Charleston, where
Jewish persons preferred 10 settle and to work.

"

MARTINARURG

) |

MarTiNssuRG

GENERAL

. i
P —

Martinsburg is an industrial city in the Eastern Panhandle
of West Virginia, in the northeastern part of the state. It is
situated at an altitude of 435 feet above sea level, 17 miles south
southwest of Hagerstown, Md,, and %0 miles northwest of
Washington, D. C. Martinsburg is the county seat of Berkeley
County.

Martinsburg was first settled in 1774 t0 1776, and was char-
tered as a village [or as a town, as some historians believe] in
1778, then later as a town, and still later, in 1859, as a city. In
1940, it was reported (United States Census) to have a popula-
tion of 15,063. In 1955, its population was given as 1 5,600. The
United States Census of 1950 gave Martinsburg a general
population of 15,621.

Martinsburg is noted for its manufacture of textiles (especially
woollens), hosiery, furniture, cement, wood products, and bricks.
Large deposits of shale, limestone, and clay are to be found in its
immediate vicinity, and are utilized. It is, in addition to being
an industrial city, also a commercial and livestock center, and

also a center for agriculture. It is located in an apple- and peach-
growing center, and it produces and ships these fruits and also
byproducts of the livestock industry. Martinsburg’s location is
at the entrance to the Shenandoah Valley. The city is served by
both the Pennsylvania Railroad and the Baltimore & Ohio
Railroad; the latter maintains a large repair shop in
Martinsburg. g

During the Civil War, Martinsburg was occupied, successis
by Federal and Confederate armies. It derives its
Colonel Thomas Bryan Martin, and was laid out,
as a village, by General Adam Stephen. _

Bunker Hill Village, ten miles to the southwest of
is the site of the oldest recorded settlement in all
Bunker Hill Village was settled about the year 1




THEODOR SCHUCHAT

11015 SE Lake Road
Bellevue WA 98004-7557
Voice (425) 454-1929
Fax (206) 726-7898
Email tedschuchat@mymailstation.com

June 16, 2001

Desar Wr. Johnson,

Your cireularfl letter of June 5 prompted me %o
gend you the Xeroxed material enclosed, an account of
the Jews who lived in Marlinton during the first half
of the Twentieth Cantury,

4s Cherlene Beverage will conf;}m, I heve heen
dlspersing my persomal library. If Income aeross any

more rfoesnontes County material, I'll send it alonge

Comdially yours,

[ . Mo

a&r. Allen .Js:..-.nor., Director
.c;.?cp.ta «Ounty ¥ree Libraries
“elLlintie Fudlie Librery
wAFliinton WVE24954
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MARLINTON

: irgini ted in

Marlinton is a town in east central \/Ze:; 1}2:2‘;:::;31800;0 er

tas County. It is the county sea :
Poca.hcli::l n as a hunting resort. Marlinton, situated southeast
55 ls1;) towS rings and east of Richwood, had, in 1937, a
= 221 :;)ul:tion of 1,586. In 1940, it was reported -to have a
tg::lal general population of 1,644; and in 1959, the United States
Census gave the town a general population of 1,654. =

The A7YB for 1927 reported that there were 11 Jews living
in Marlinton in 1927, and in 1937 there were ten Jews or less
residing in the town. ol

Several years after 1922, Harry Barbakow, now (1959) living
in Princeton, W. Va., and his brother-in-law, Herman Kelmen-
son, moved from Thomas, W. Va., to Marlinton, where they
opened up a dry goods and clothing store in partnership. Later,
Harry Barbakow sold out his share in the store to Herman
Kelmenson, who remained in Marlinton; while Harry Barbakow
settled in Princeton, W. Va., entering the dry goo#ls and clothing
business. In 1959, he was still resident in Princeton, engaged
in the same business, together with his son, Yankee [Jacob]
Barbakow.

In addition to the above information, excerpted in part from
letters written to me by Harry Barbakow (from 1956 to 1959),
who was a very staunch member of my old Bluefield-Princeton
Congregation Ahavath Sholom (1947-1950), I was most for-
tunate in receiving four additional letters dealing with the
carlier and present Jewish residents of Marlinton, from which

most of the following data have been excerpted. These letters
were from:

Summers H. Suarp, an attorney (a non-Jew) in Marlinton; the
~ letter is dated July 26, 1956,

Dowaro [Don) C, TAYLOR, minister of the Emmanuel Methodist
Church, of } luntington, and a former resident in, and native
of, Mz?rlilxttxn. who was reared and lived for a number of
years in Marlinton, The Reverend Don C. Taylor and I
met several times in Buckhannon, W, Va,, as well as in
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Huntington, on the occasion of J. C. S. assignments to me
and at Religious Ephasis Week programs and summer
camp programs of the Methodist Church of West Virginia
in which I participated (1950-1956). His letter is dated
July 18, 1956.

Mrs. PauL R. OvernoLT, of Buckeye, W. Va,, formerly of
Marlinton, and the daughter of Paul Golden. Her letter is
dated August 8, 1956.

AporprH E. (EpwArD) CoOPER, a Marlinton attorney. His letter
is dated August 3, 1956.

The last three mentioned letters contain so many valuable
data about Jews of Marlinton, and provide such fine human-
interest stories, that they are herewith cited virtually in toto.

[From the Reverend Donald C. Taylor]

“Huntington, West Virginia.
“July 18, 1956.

.. .. Regarding the Jewish families of Marlinton, . . . there is now
only one family residing there that is strictly Jewish. That is the
Cooper family. The head of the family, Adolph E. Cooper, is an
attorney in Marlinton. He is quite active in the Republican Party on
a county basis. I believe that he is the city attorney. He was raised,
I believe, at Cass, West Virginia. Mrs. Cooper is a very devout per-
son. ... I believe that her family is in Baltimore, and that she has
some connection with a synagogue there. The Coopers have two chil-
dren: Doris Ella Cooper, who is now in college; and Daniel Cooper,
who is a senior at Marlinton High School. J

Mrs. Paul Overholt lives in [near] Marlinton. [She is the daughter
of the late Paul Golden.] She was raised as a Jewess. At the present
time she attends the Episcopalian Church. I am not sure that she has
been confirmed as a member. Her husband is a member of the Metl:-
odist Church in Marlinton. [The maiden name of Mrs. l-"_aul Ovcrh:lt
was Mary Frances Golden; she was nicknamed and is c‘??mo. e,’:
called “Fannie.”] One daughter in the family [of Paul and “Fanni

Overholt] is a Unitarian. . . . pre T

Several years ago there were three other Jewish 'famlllﬁ_ 'B‘;lht'i‘t:'gx) .
ton. I knew them slightly. The Kleins (originally residents oed ot
were merchants there [in Marlinton] in 1932. A family nam hat family
owned a store there, and sold out to the Kleins. [The sc';}'iewmbm’
of Marlinton was related to the family of Louis Schuchat, o that the
and 1o that, also, of Mrs. Sara Schwartz Schuchat.] I believe
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: . f 1931. I am not sure
linton during the summer Of ¥

Schuchats lef Mi'lI‘rhlol::‘ only name of any of the I.{lcms that I remember
where they went. high school with me [in

) : ‘. She graduated from _ :
nﬁ;&iﬁ;ﬂ[ 91';-;01!; am n%:asurc when the Kleins left Marlinton.

incli ieve that they returned to Baltimore.

I a;;l;ngli;ldedf:;;;;l which I remember was named Kelmiznsi:)rt;m'l;l;e
name of the head of the family was written H. [Hc;man}x. : . h

knew a son [of Herman Kelmenson] quite well, from being S hg :
:choZl with him. He was named Harry Kelme‘nson. I under;tian ll; cal
Harry Kelmenson is now a prominent surgeon in Baltimore, : zry a!:'t :
There was one daughter in the Kelmenson family; she was older t ban
Harry, but I do not remember her name. ... I do not‘remelt]n er
when the Kelmensons moved away from Marlinton. I believe that it

was in the middle 1930’s — about 1935 or 1936.

[From Mis. Paul R. (Mary Frances Golden] Overholt, of Buckeye,
W. Va., under date of August 8, 1956]

¢ ‘Balla Machree’
“R: Fo DNt
“Buckeye, W. Va.

....My mother, Minna Milner, came from Lithuania, near
Propst. Her father was a miller. The village in which she lived was
on a river much like the Greenbrier. She was very pious, but failed
to instruct me in the Jewish precepts. This was the case in [with]
many of the earlier Jewish settlers who had to work so hard that they
neglected this step, although [the proverb or saying] “Born a Jew,
always a Jew” seems to be bred in the bone. The early merchants
here had to board their clerks [provide them with room and meals],
so that made extra work.

Besides running a general merchandise store, my father [Paul
Golden] and H. [Herman] Kelmenson bought wool and ginseng.

I hope that you may be able to garner a few facts of interest from
my [the following) ramblings. I had hoped to rewrite the enclosed

rambling account and have it typed. However, after six weeks of
guests, the work in my garden makes this impossible,

“ ‘FANNIE' OvERHOLT (Mary Frances Golden
Overholt).”

Judge [Summers H ] Sh
felt that I knew more abouy
colorful figure, He wias

arp asked me to answer
t my father
about 514

your letter, as he
[Paul Golden]. Papa was a very
feet tall, with merry blue eyes and
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light brown hair. He always had a small gift for the chi
they came to his store; so many of them alwaysr e chu;lrentwl':m

traveling where they had a good cook. He always stopped at Jud
Sharp’s home [before he settled in Marlinto "
good friends, Ayt they wees i

His home [native country and villa was i
[Pripet] Marshes in what is now Poland glﬂ [was] :::lrerﬂlllewuwpzz}::le:
at that time. His father, who was a bookkeeper for a well-to-do relative
in a nearby city (Riga?), was killed at the beginning of a pogrom when
he rushed back to [into] the store to get the books, although his relative
had begged him not to. He [my father, Paul Golden] borrowed the
money from some relative to come to America, and then sent money
back for the various members of his family to come [to the United
States]. 2

He was always interested in education and the welfare of this
community [Marlinton, W. Va]. At his death, in 1944, we sent his
library of many of the classics to a synagogue in Baltimore,

Paul Golden [my father] was born in Russia, near the Phriphet
[Pripet] Marshes, and came to America between 1885 and 1888,
He began in business as a peddler in West Virginia. He bought his
merchandise from the Baltimore Bargain House, and after coming to
Pocahontas County [in West Virginia] [he] had it shipped to Millton
Springs, Va., where it was brought over the mountains to the store
which he [later] had in Edray [West Virginia). Previously to this he
had carried his merchandise in a huge sack on his back. He must have
been very strong, as the country people marveled at what he could get
in this sack. Mrs. Elmer Poague [Pogue] said that they could always
depend on what he said about his merchandise. If he said it was good,
it was fine, and if he said it was just “fair,” it was that. He had a gray
horse and wagon when he became more prosperous. After I{C cﬁmc tg
Edray, a village a few miles from Marlinton, he let a cousin, .Red
Golden, do the peddling. (The horse and buggy were lost in an
accident.) This cousin, an E. Golden, was a smaller man w'thlr&d
hair and a long, red beard. The Elmer Pogues, in whose yard ak l:m‘;
store stood, and with whom he boarded, tell of the terrible q.‘:la R
he had with “Red.” It seems that one Passover the matzoh ?Ico:::]
tome from Baltimore, so he had their cook [the Elme{ !’oguﬁ and
make it of flour, salt, and water. The cousin, a very mhg'ou; mar]:am
opoor health, ate it, but decided it wasn't right a few days ’
and was most indignant.

He [Paul (.;nldcr’:] moved to Marlinton about 1894 or 1895. mc: ;

' ¢ the old,
marnied my mother in Baltimore, This store was near e
covered bridge built over the Greenbrier River during the Gi
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i ilding, where he
ross the bridge to a large bu . :
e !ngul;?nr;sov:ﬂtac 1919. My mother’s ncphcw.s, Sun:;l I';;lnz::
st;;:d“;g) and Maurice Klein (now owner of a big gen

; imi ’s in Forest Hill, Md.), worked for
i ilar to my father’s in F
;lix;n:ltm:a::z:es :;ﬁes [in Marlinton]. His sister, Ida Golden Fuman, her

. re for him in Falling

husband, andR:;?thitLdg; e!:I;lri:: rpé';?lf:; ‘fﬁvﬁ Virginia], for several
ings, now ’ <

b, oy (o), s vy o 060 e

place, so [he] moved to Indiana and then.to ICE;% e ’

but [he] never had any more money than in West “',gll T 7

Papa helped my mother’s sister Mary .[Mary ‘Ml ner]t;oat
husband, Abe Harrison, establish a store in Marlinton a out 1903.
Abe [Harrison] was an excellent busmessm-an, and sold his store }I;o
Louis Klein. He [Abe Harrison] went to Fairmont, W. Ya., where e
made his fortune in a huge store dedicated to the workingman. This
store was leased to some men by the name of Golden Brother.s [pf‘c-
sumably not related to Paul Golden] when he retired to Atlantic City
[N. J]. He [Abe Harrison] operated a store in Qumbcrland, Md_.,
for a few years, hoping to get his three sons established thert?, but his
health was poor there, so he went back to Atlantic City. He died there
at the age of 79 in 1954. I wrote to his oldest son, Bernard [Harrison],
of 4601 Ventnor Ave. [Atlantic City, N. J.], for information, but have
not received it.

My father always was fascinated by the lumber business, so when he
sold his store out, he indulged in this and lost much of his hard-earned
cash. However, the land on which he cut the most lumber was valuable
farmland, and helped him to recuperate his fortune a little. At the
age of 75 he started on the road again, in a Ford [automobile] this
time, as a jobber for work clothes and gloves. He traveled all over
southern West Virginia and enjoyed this work very much. It gave him
:;:mtlr:: for his urge to wander as in his younger days, and gave him a

nee to carn.

He gave me seven years in a boarding school and college. My mother
_ ate from Columbia [Univer-

ove for learning was not lost.
the Southern Cemetery in

He announced his | g
. "W intentions to become n i : - :
' naturalized
890, and became ized in Baltimore in

e a citizen in Pocahontas County [West Virginia)

" F Ao Ovesnory (Mary Frances Golden Overholt).”



[Letter from A. E. (Adolph Edward) Cooper, of Marlinton, dat

August 3, l956]
“A. E. [Adolph Edward] Cooper,
“Attorney at Law,
“Marlinton, W. Va.

“August 3, 1956.

This is in reply to your letter requesting inf(_)rmation zibout myself,
family, and other former chish farmhf:s who lived here in the [Poca-
hontas] county, and especially at Marlinton. _

My father was Jacob Cooper. My n}o'thex: was Maggie Gordon
Cooper. They came to Cass, Wcst Virginia, in this county, around
1905. Dad was a merchant, operating the Cooper’s Department Store
at Cass. We were the only Jewish family in Cass. My father was a
most respected citizen. He was a member of the Town Council at Cass.
He was a member of the Masonic Order at Cass, [the Lodge in Cass)
being Riverside Lodge No. 124. When Dad came to Cass there were
three children, namely, Veeda, Leon, and Theodore [Cooper]. Then I
was born on June 7th, 1906. Lewis [Cooper, my brother] was born on
July 20th, 1907. All [the] children graduated at [from] Marlinton
High School. Marlinton is 25 miles from Cass by rail. The children
had to board away from home while going to school. Dad moved his
store from Cass to Durbin, West Virginia, in 1930, and continued in
business for a couple of years and left this county in 1932, returning to
Washington, D. C. He came from Washington to West Virginia in
1905. Dad died in 1943 in Washington, D. C., on July 4th, and is
buried in Adas Israel Cemetery. He was aged 69. Mother died August
25th, 1947, and is also buried in the same cemetery. Her maiden name
was Gordon, and her father was a rabbi, as I recall, in Russia. Both
iy parents originally came from Russia, and [my] father became a
naturalized citizen prior to his coming to West Virginia. My mother
was a very well-read person, and [was] well liked by all who came in
contact with her,

My sister, VeEpA [Cooper], died in 1928, and is buried in the same
cemetery in Washington. She was a talented pianist, and was most
Popular. She was the oldest of the children [of Jacob and Maggie
Gordon (lm;prr],

l-f—""* [Cx orenr| is the oldest boy, and is living in Washington, D. C.
He s connected with the Metropolitan Life Insurance Company, He
' married, and has one child, named Barbara. He was a member of

lh!" Masonic Lodge at Cass.
Pieonoke Coopen 15 a doctor, having his office in Baltimore, Md.

He graduated [from] West Virginia University [in Morgantown] and
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yale Medical School.
Cass. Theodore Cooper
daughter, and Edward.
Theodore built a beaut:fu.l
in age. Theodore Cooper 1
University. pwarD CoopEr] am the next boy, born on June 7,

H E < SR
:;ﬁlﬁc&s, W.Va]. 1 graduated [from] West Virginta Tiaw Schiel

: with the LL.B. degree. [I] graduated on June 8th [192¢],
::u:ll gstg;ted practice on July 8th [1929], in Marlinton, W. Va. [I
am a] member of Phi Sigma Delta fra.termty, a national one. ... |
have been City Attorney in Marlinton since 1941, and perhaps a year
or two before that. While at West Virginia University I was a member
of the varsity wrestling team in the 118-pound class, for the five years
there, and a member of the West Virginia Club for athletes, called
the Varsity Club, I believe. I am a member of the Masonic Order at
Cass. I am a member of the Marlinton Rotary Club, and Past President
on two separate occasions. I became a member one month after the
Club was organized in 1937. I was a president of the Pocahontas
County Board of Trade for one year. . .. I am a Republican, and ran
for the office of Prosecuting Attorney of Pocahontas County, West
Virginia, for three times. This was in 1932, 1936, and 1940. [It was)
a bad time for a Republican to run. I am at present Chairman of the
Republican Executive Committee of Pocahontas County, having been
elected a member at the primary, and chosen Chairman by the Com-
mittee. I was .clcctcd a Member from Edray District of this county.

I am married, and the father of two children. I was married on
grecocmllf:cr 24, 1933, in New York. My wife was formerly Diana
- nick. She was born in New York, but her folks were living at
02;3:"10;:0.[1:;-, W{I;‘n I was attending school at Morgantown at the
Wen Virzi:ia Uc;tl vc:.:ig:;na. We met at the fraternity on the campus at

: . L0

| Dowrs Erca Coorer is my elder [child]. She is a graduate of Marlin-
ton High School in 1954. She is now
of Maryland, She is a member of Al

Univensity of Maryland. She made the Dean’s List this past school

Ynll;;\:::i \;m lm::n [in Marlimon] on October 1, 1936.
- ¥auL Cooren is my son. He was born on April 23, 1940. He

is 8 sophomore | L) @
ball and (unball":r::::_lmm" High School, and a member of the base-

High School at this “":c is the only Jewish student in the [Marlinton]

“- _ » N
% P‘:gtrn)\ddph E. Cooper family] are
e hontas (A.lumy‘ll this time [1956)
some information as 1o other Jewish families:

member of the Masonic Lodge at
Hles ‘:::r: ed, and has two children: Vicki, a
Vicki is married, and lives in Baltimore.
home at Pikesville, Md. He is next to Leon
also a Phi Beta Kappa from West Virginia

the only Jewish family living
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olden came to Marlinton in 1892.! He was a

P*:‘ﬂ?ﬂ‘;,‘ﬁ,‘ﬁ';eﬂaﬁ':,f in 1944 at the age of 86, His il Minnie
T Gelden, who died in 1048, at the age of 8o years.

'Aas HarrisoN. Abe Harrison was in busmes_s in Marlinton, about

' 1905. He went from Marlinton to Fairmont, W. Va., some
the year 9: and opened up the “Workingman’s Store.” Later
time around 1905, - X3
he lcased this store of his to a firm known as Golden Brothers., in
Fairmont, while he himself moved to Atlantic City, N. J. Abe Harrison
was the brother-in-law of Paul Golden. He sold his business in Marlin-
1on to Louis Klein, of Baltimore. Mr. [Abe] Harrison died in Atlantic
City in 1954, at the age of 79, and at the time he was in the real estate
bu;gl:fmm BroTHERS. The Schulman Brothers were here in business
during the period from 1910 to 1920. One of the brothers was Max
Schulman. One of them is still living. They went from Marlinton to
Poughkeepsie, N. Y.

Isaac Rosen. Isaac Rosen was here in business in the early 1920’s.
His wife was a relative of the Schulmans.

H. [erman] KeLMENsON. H.[erman] Kelmenson and his family were
in Marlinton for years. He was married, and had two children. Edith
Kelmenson, his daughter, was married, and died in Baltimore. A
son, Harry Kelmenson, is a doctor, located in Baltimore; he is married,
and has a family of his own. Mr. and Mrs. H.[erman] Kelmenson are
lwing in Baltimore, Md. Mr. [Herman] Kelmenson operated a store
in Marlinton for many yeérs.

310N SHUCHAT [ScHUCHAT).? Simon Shuchat and his family lived
here at Marlinton for years. He operated a fine store here. His wife
as Sarah [Mrs. Sara Schwartz Schuchat; see below.] She lives in
Baltimore. . . . They have some children living in Baltimore.

\Se¢ below, for the letter of Mrs. Sara Schwartz Schuchat on
Marlinton and the Simon Schuchat family.]

Lovs Suuckat [Scnucnat]. Louis Schuchat was also in Marlinton,
L«! he is now, and has been for many years, located at Lewisburg,

V. Va.. .. [Louis Schuchat operated a store in Lewisburg for many
(“4% unl his retirement from business in the 1950's. He was the
#uther of Simon Schuchat.)

s'l‘ﬂ ® Kixv. Louis Klein was succeeded [in business] by the

“ehiats [Schuchats), and then they in turn by Abe Klein. Abe Klein

;1:; !m business here for a few years. A fire destroyed the property,
4 ‘“d a daughter named Anita Klein, and a son, Millard Klein,
Y NIT Dow in B‘l““lllft, | b('“l'.'\’e,

o ™
-~ L9 o 1y, sccording o Paul Golden's daughter, Mrs. Paul R. Overholt;
e, page oy

“1
" Convect apeiling of this name is Schuchat.
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.. and his wife, Sylvia, were 1 business in

A S Kl S e, inclusive, They now live in Datlsery
11:44:11- 1; rvia Scheir is now Mrs. Sam Ross, of Baltlmo;fé_

. Yed since leaving Marlinton, after a divorce proc “:ig' G
s FANNIE OVERHOLT. Mrs. Fannie [Mary Frances Golden Over-

?‘I.Ri'l;-annie” is a familiar name for Frances, no do_ubt] pvcrholt,
:;:,et;vifc of Paul R. Overholt, lives near Marlinton, 1n thl.;» gc;t:lnty
[in Buckeye, W. Val]. Sheisa daughter of Mr. and Mrs. Paul Golden.
She is married to a Methodist, and they h.ave two children. ...

We are constructing a golf course in this County, near Marh-ntm?,
and have formed a corporation for that purpose. The corporation 1S
called the Pocahontas County Country Club, and I am president.
This is only another point of interest, in view 9f the fact that we are
the only Jews here [the Adolph E. Cooper family]. :

Lewis Cooper. I overlooked my youngest brother, Lewis Cooper.
He was born [in Cass, W. Va] on July 20, 1907. A graduate of West
Virginia University, he served in the United States Navy. Now married,
he is living in Washington, D. C., and has three sons. He was with
Hecht’s Department Store [in Washington, D. C.] for a few years,
and is now with the Sun Radio Stdres. He was in every State in this
country, and has toured Europe.

Jacoe Coorer. My father, Jacob Cooper, was a great man. He
believed in education. Three of us boys were at West Virginia Univer-
sity at one time. Our mother and father gave us the best of everything
at considerable sacrifice. We were the only Jewish family at Cass.

My full name is Adolph Edward Cooper.

“A. E. CoopPgr.”

MEMmOIR OF MRs. SARA SCHWARTZ SCHUCHAT!
ON MARLINTON, WEST VIRGINIA
AND ON HERrR LATE HusBaND
SIMON SCHUCHAT, OF MARLINTON, WEST VIRGINIA?

MEemoIrR oF MRs. SARA (StMON) ScHUCHAT
MARLINTON, WEST VIRGINIA

I am sorr
-~ Y not to have sent
but it is the kind of you the below background before now,

thinq one w
et | . _ * wants to set down
sufficient stretch of time has been lacking *1h 8t cncoumEes

L w“‘tm . ‘.‘ " H ar H ¢ o - 4 ‘

ot L 1958, and on Janua
nsertions are by the latter e - .

o Abraham 1, Shinedling. The bracketed
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SiMoN SCHUGHAT was born in Kovna [Kovno], Lithuan.ia, about
1878, and came to Baltimore v«n.th his parents and four sisters and
brothers in 1884. Two more children were born in Baltnnqre. He
owned a cigar factory in Baltimore until after we were ma:_‘ned, on
February 28, 1915, at Baltimore. In 1916 we moved to Marlinton, at
which time Simon Schuchat bought Klein’s Department Store in
Marlinton from my uncle, Louis Klein. We moved back to Baltimore,
from Marlinton, in 1930. On his side of the family, only my husband,
and his brother Louis Schuchat, had any connection with West
Virginia. [Louis Schuchat, later of Lewisburg, W. Va., is the father-
in-law of Rabbi Ely E. Pilchik, of Newark, N. J., Rabbi Pilchik having
married Louis Schuchat’s daughter Ruth.] Louis Schuchat married
Mary Aaron, of Bluefield [Mary Aaron would be an aunt of Mrs.
Sarah Aaron Schlossberg (Mrs. Abraham N. Schlossberg), of Blue-
field], and Mrs. [Louis] Schuchat should be able to supply you with a
wealth of information about Lewisburg and Bluefield. Their address
is just Lewisburg, W. Va., but they spend the winter at Coral Gables,
Florida.

I was born SARA ScHWARTZ, one of seven children, in Boydton,
Virginia. Although my parents, JAcoB ScHwARTZ and MiINNA KLEIN
ScHwARrTZ, came to Baltimore and returned there before we children
were all grown, they lived in the interval in several towns on the
Eastern Shore of Maryland, also in Boydton, Va., where my sister
Bessie and I were both born, and also briefly in North Carolina. They
owned stores in these places. My parents spent their later years in
Baltimore, and died there. For a short period of time, Jacob and Minna
Klein Schwartz lived also in Grafton, W. Va. We lived in Grafton,
[West Virginia,] for a time when I was very young.

We moved to Baltimore, where I started school. My brother AARON
[Scuwartz] attended D & E [Davis and Elkins College, in Elkins,
W. Val], and played football there (against Navy!). At the time he
lived with my Uncle Ase KLEIN (my mother’s brother), who had a
store in Elkins. Uncle Abe Klein, a brother of Louis KLEIN, had moved
to Elkins from Grafton, West Virginia. EpHrRAIM KLEIN, my mother’s
oldest brother, was in Grafton, West Virginia, for sixty years or more,
and had a department store. He married and died there. His daughter,
Ray Klein, is a resident buyer in New York City; his daughter, Flora
Klein Freedman, lives in Youngstown, Ohio; and his son, Harry

Klein, is in Minneapolis.

My Uncle Ixe (1. Cuarvces KLein) lived for a long time in Weston,
W. Va., where he had a department store. His son died quite young.
]l bree of his daughters live in New York and one in Princeton, New
g I"[‘:,ry
_ My mother, Minna Kiein, was born in Travich [Tavrick], near

Filsic [Russia), about the year 1856 or 1857, and my father, Jacos
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{ 1, which was then a part
. born in Neistadt, Lithuania, w L1
SCHWARTZ, a‘}':: ab:::lt 1856 or 1857. Both towns gvesr: m&el:m
o They came to the United States in 1888 [1878?], a thclrth i
saipiy Neg;stadt. At the time of their arrival they were on their
e when they came to Baltimore on their honeymoon,

it oy Id. My Aunt CerLia KLEIN married
bout twenty-two years old. My
ALSXW[?L:XA:DBR] Lazarus of Belington, W. Va., and they had two

: : Louis, Morris, Isaac, Jack, Ephraim, Goldie, and
&}saam b°g; uts Lazarus lives in Whecling, Morris LAzARUS
lived there until his death a few years ago [at Wheeling]. Jack Lazarus
is a dentist in Baltimore, and EpHRADM Lazarus, who taught high
school in Belington for many years, now lives in Baltimore, as do the
two girls, the former GoLpiE and L!:'.NA LAOZARUS: all of them now
married. Ephraim Lazarus, after leavmg.Bclmgton,. l.:)cca:me an office
manager in Baltimore; he is still working in that position in ].33.lt1more.

Louts KLeIN (to get back to my mother’s brothers) lived in Weston
and then came.to Marlinton, and bought A. [Abraham] Harrison’s
store, which became Klein’s Department Store. I lived with his family
from the time I was sixteen until I was twenty. They were there
[Louis Klein and his wife] eight years in all before my husband bought
the store, at which time they moved to Washington. My Uncle ABe
KLeN was at first a salesman for the United Rubber Company before
he settled in Elkins, W. Va. He went to Elkins when he was quite
young, opened a store there and married and had three children.
Later he was in the department store business in Clarksburg, W. Va.,
with the Nusbaum Company. His last store was in Fairmont, W. Va.
Abe Klein’s three children were Anita, Dorothy, and Millard Klein.
Anita Klein is married in Baltimore, Dorothy Klein is in Washington,
as are Millard Klein and his wife and two children. The Kleins, as
you can see, were early settlers in West Virginia.

¢ roads were not as good as

they are ‘
#o%, and a whole family, lumbermen or farmers, would

( - . .

'(‘:;::’:: Marlinton for a dny. of shopping. We did a lot of advertising,

doul;lrdui }: m‘umhly Mmagazine, and while we were in Marlinton we
€ size of the store, We lived in an cight-room apartment

em four and a half because one man

.l | h part of anything like that [of Judai
‘ation, and of being known as a Jew, and[ ofjc‘:m:rl?t:‘u:i:::
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ney for Jewish causes], we raised a great deal of money (it’s all ;
e bk 'rjm'; Thing Called Giving, 1 believe the name is), bgat:eu\:
had all of our Christian friends contributing and raising money. We
had a real fund drive, with meetings at our house. Mr. Schuchat wag
one of the Directors of The Bank of Marlinton. When we came there,
the town had electricity only at night, and Mr. Schuchat was instru-
mental in floating a bond [issue] to buy a second dynamo for daylight
current. He was very active in the Kiwanis Club. And he was a
active Democrat — when there were very few Democrats of any kind
in that area. His political interests did not affect his close friendship
with such good Republicans as Judge Summer [Summers H.] Sharp
or his brother George Sharp (mentioned below).

When the Presbyterian and Methodist Sunday schools studied the
Old Testament, Mr. Schuchat was always asked to speak to the
children. He also spoke at morning chapel at the high schools. He used
to have long conversations in Hebrew [?] with the Reverend George
J. Cleveland, then the minister of the Episcopal Church, later canon
at the Washington [D. C.] Cathedral, and now in Richmond, Virginia.
We always attended the Thanksgiving [Day] service at one of the
churches [in Marlinton] and went to them on other occasions.

I was one of the charter members of the Women’s Club of Marlinton,
whose membership was strictly limited to 24 and was by invitation
only. (I was the only Jewish member — and usually the only Jewish
delegate at State Women’s Clubs’ Conventions.)

Before we moved to Marlinton, Mr. [Simon] Schuchat learned [in
Baltimore] to be a shochet, so that we could have kosher fowl in West
Virginia. We had a kosher home, and at Pesach ate only meat because
we could not get pesachdich [fit for Passover use] dairy products.
We always had seders, and the other Jewish families of Marlinton
were invited. On the high holy days, even though there were not
enough Jews for a Minyan, we held services at our home.

[T would have imagined, or surmised, on the basis of etymology and
“logic,” that the implication is rather clear that the family name of
her husband, Simon Schuchat, is derived from the Hebrew word shocket,
which means a ritual slaughterer of poultry and anima.ls:, and tl:lat the
spelling Schuchat represents a variant of that name or title. It is very
likely that, just as Simon Schuchat learned, in Baltimore, to be a
Shochet, some one of his ancestors, or several of them, possibly tl:s
father and his grandfather in the “Old Country,” had learned .
and had been, Shochetim in Lithuania, many years before Simon

- , : P : that
Schuchat’s and his parents’ emigration to the Umtt;dSS:Iatcﬁi :mjith g
It was | is occupati ily name of Schuchat,

rom this occupation that the family na oF the D%

slight dialectical accent, and with a slight variant spelling el
was adopted, perhaps as far back as two or three generations,
before Simon Schuchat's grandfather’s time.

even
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L (13 g b ] he n am e
wever surmise, or conjecture, as to the “origin of t . :
ScI['IH:hat w:asmiicomct, ’according to the following statement in this
resp:ct made by Mrs. Sara S. Schuchat, in reply to my query, in her

d detailed letter, that of January 22, 1959:]
sec::;la:o:sgla:now‘: the Schuch’at family in Lithuania consisted of five
cantors (brothers). [These five brothers were the grandfather and the
four granduncles of Simon Schuchat.] We hayc heard that one pf
these cantors went to Italy, where some of his descendants live in
Rome. My husband’s father [David Schuchat] (the son of one of the
five brothers), who made his living here [in the United States] as a
cabinetmaker, came to Baltimore. My husband learn?d to be a Shoc!mt
only so that we might have [kosher] meat ir.n Marlinton. He stuc.hed
[Shechitah] (if this is the term) briefly in Baltimore aftex: our marriage
(1915-1916), but before we went to West Virginia _(m 1916?, and
only enough so that he could perform ritual slaughtering for his own
family. He did, however, kill chickens for the other [Jewish] families
[in Marlinton] for holydays.

My husband, StMon ScrucHAT, went to Cheder [the five-day-a-week
Hebrew day school] in Baltimore. His parents were observant Jews,
and the combination gave him his religious background. His father,
David Schuchat, was a founder of Beth Tefilah Congregation [in
Baltimore]. As far as I know, the name has always been spelled
Schuchat in English, with the two ¢’s. As I wrote above, the name far
[long] preceded my husband’s becoming a Shochet.

Our daughter Betsy [ScrucHAT] was born on June 3, 1918, and our
first son, Tu.zonoa [ScrucHAT], on June 1 5, 1923. Both of them were
Il::::'; tm Baltimore, and Theodor was the first male Schuchat in a long,

ime.

[Our son] MicuagL [ScruckAT] was born on December 1. 2
in M.arlinton. The Mohf:l was brought from Baltimore, and al5]’ ofgo:t,'
ginftiﬂf]Bz:ist;lv?(l:li;i }Il-(:“'“‘Sh friends wexl'e invitl::d to what I believe was

cision ceremony] ever held in Marlinton.
Juchlig S(:"] Davip George [ScuucnaT] was born at Marlinton on
» 1930, and the Mohel was brought from Charles <
tary of Stat [ f W o s ton bY Secre
>rate lol West Virginia] George W, Sharp, who came down

with him and insisted that Davi

had brought the T avid also be named George because he

wlzv‘:hl:.\’:i r.: M;rlinton fgr fourteen years (until 1930), and then we
’ - and returned to Balti

o back [to Baltimorc] when (t)hcag:)lmorc. We had always planned to

While we lived in Marli

* we live arlinton we would b

{il:x:.k [Bloch) Publishing Comp: 8 e e -

n i .

wa?:ﬁl :r:za to Ncyv Yurk,.;md when we returned to Baltimore Bets

ol pd rfn}tm: .‘.m.ndny School in her correct grade. The boys ' )tr
ehiloh [Tefilah) Hebrew School in Baltimore and w:jo‘;'::d

‘y
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that congregation. Mr. Schughat’s father [David Schuchat] had been
one of the early members, and Mr. [Simon] Schuchat was active as a
member of the Board of Beth Tefiloh Congregation until his death at
Baltimore in October, 1945. As long as our children attended Hebrew
School, F was an active member of the Board of it.

Betsy [ScHucHAT] went to West Virginia University and graduated
in 1939. While there she was president of the Sigma Delta Tau sorority.
She received a master’s degree in social work at Tulane University,
in New Orleans, and in 1946 she married Jerry Schoenholtz, a business
agent for the ILGWU [International Ladies’ Garment Workers’
Union]. They live in New York, and she is currently Directress of
Social Services of the French Hospital.

[THEODOR] ScHUCHAT, the eldest son of Simon and Sara S, Schuchat,
attended West Virginia University until he went into the Army
Signal Corps in 1942. He graduated from the New School for Social
Research in New York after the [Second World] War, and was an
information specialist with the Department of Health, Education and
Welfare until he became the executive director of the Social Legislation
Information Service, in Washington, D. C. On December 27, 1958,
Theodor Schuchat was married to Bertha Moscov, of Washing-
ton, D. C.

MicHAEL [ScHucHAT] began college at Carnegie Tech [the Carnegie
Institute of Technology], in Pittsburgh, and then joined the Naval
ROTC. He graduated from Yale University in the class of [19]45W,
and then served as an ensign on a destroyer in the Pacific. After
graduating from Georgetown Law School, he clerked for Judge
Charles Fahey, of the United States Court of Appeals in Washington.
He was recalled during the Korean War and served in the Caribbean
and in North Africa. He is a member of the law firm of Geiger, Harmel
and Schuchat. He married Mollie Geiger, of the District of Columbia,
in 1953, and has three children, Simon, Frank, and Betty Schuchat.
[Michael Schuchat’s older son, Simon Schuchat, would thus appear
to have been named after his grandfather, the original Simon Schuchat
who was the husband of Mrs. Sara Schwartz Schuchat.]

Davio [Davip Georae ScuucHAT] attended West Virginia Univer-
sity, George Washington University, and Johns Hopkins University.
He served in the Quartermaster Corps of the Army in Munich. He
UWOs & tea company in Baltimore, and is engaged in real estate in
Washington and Baltimore, He lives with me at 3413 Glen Avenue
(please note the new address), Baltimore 1 5, Md.

We all have close ties to Marlinton, We go back as often as we can,
and | still subseribe to the Pocahontas Times (a weekly), found.ed by the
Price Family. The newspaper still publishes news of marriages a
births in my family. Marlinton was a very liberal place to live for a
Jow, and people were accepted for what they were. . . .
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poem composed Dr.
on October 20, 1930, by the late
ul::ess :Jl;:!‘fn:oﬁ Price ‘:gmus, on our leaving Marlinton. I shall send
‘;Irou a copy. I think it is very good. . . .
“Mrs. SARA [ScHwARTZ] ScHUCHAT (MRs. SiMON SCHUCHAT),

“3413 Glen Avenue,
Baltimore 15, Md.

“FRIENDS AND FLOWERS”

In Wyllie Manor’s merry mansion halls,
Glad meetings (with the partings of regret),
Soft music, and softer footstep falls

In measures of grand, stately minuet.

Friends losing the old days and ways,
We can not know or show a reason why,
Hoping for them to stay with us always,
And never, the forever, last good bye.

The year our flowers lost the summer showers,
We could not keep them so they would not fade,
Too soon the roses were a sombre shade

Yet memories of their fragrance still are ours.

Some flowers’ leaves are of the evergreen,
The leaf that keeps the verdure ever new
In summer, and our autumn hours, too,
As waving over water ways they lean.

October 20, 1930 J.[aMEs] M.[aD1sON] Price

Banquet of farewell in honor of Mr. and Mrs. Simon Schuchat.

MARMET

Marmet is a town in Kanawha Count

Vlrg}mfa, loczftcd on the Kanawha River, eight miles south
u;udt ;r.-.a:tnt:f-(l,harlcslo?. It was incorporated in 1921. In 1950 it
N(,_]?- ra [)({;)Ejlznt‘l()n of 2,515 (1950 United States Census).
Wi were living in Marmet in 1958-1950, and apparently

TJe ’ ]

Do Jewish (amils
il,}l : i:if.ulmlm Or persons ever resided in the town, This was
without douly, because of jig Proximity to Charleston whert;
- »

cwis, ' '
Jewish persons preferred (o geq]e and to work

Y, in west central West
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"y MARTINSBURG

GENERAL

Martinsburg is an industrial city in the Eastern Panhandle
of West Virginia, in the northeastern part of the state. It is
situated at an altitude of 435 feet above sea level, 17 miles south
southwest of Hagerstown, Md., and 70 miles northwest of
Washington, D. C. Martinsburg is the county seat of Berkeley
County.

Martinsburg was first settled in 1774 to 1776, and was char-
tered as a village [or as a town, as some historians believe] in
1778, then later as a town, and still later, in 1859, as a city. In
1040, it was reported (United States Census) to have a popula-
tion of 15,063. In 1955, its population was given as 15,600. The
United States Census of 1950 gave Martinsburg a general
population of 15,621.

Martinsburg is noted for its manufacture of textiles (especially
woollens), hosiery, furniture, cement, wood products, and bricks.
Large deposits of shale, limestone, and clay are to be found in its
immediate vicinity, and are utilized. It is, in addition to being
an industrial city, also a commercial and livestock center, and
also a center for agriculture. It is located in an apple- and peach-
growing center, and it produces and ships these fruits and also
byproducts of the livestock industry. Martinsburg’s location is
at the entrance to the Shenandoah Valley. The city is served by
both the Pennsylvania Railroad and the Baltimore & Ohio
Railroad; the Jlatter maintains a large repair shop in
Martinsburg,

During the Civil War, Martinsburg was occupied, successively,
by Federal and Confederate armies. It derives its name from
Colonel Thomas Bryan Martin, and was laid out, originally,
4% & village, by General Adam Stephen.

- Bunker Hill Village, ten miles to the southwest of Martinsburg,
s the site of the oldest recorded settlement in all West Virginia.
Bunker Hill Village was settled about the year 1729.



